
 
 

CITY OF BAYPORT 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
SEPTEMBER 17, 2012 

6:00 P.M. 
      
CALL TO ORDER 
Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, Chairperson Levy called the regular Bayport Planning 
Commission meeting of September 17, 2012, to order at 6:25 p.m.  
 
ROLL CALL 
Commissioners Present:  David Levy, Todd Gilles, Jason Obler, Jeff Richtman and Joe Ritzer 
 
Commissioners Absent:  None 
 
City Staff Present:  City Administrator Mitch Berg, Assistant City Administrator/Planner Sara 
Taylor, City Council Liaison Michele Hanson, and Attorney Andy Pratt 
 
Others Present:  Brady Halverson and Kendra Lindahl, Landform Professional Services 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
It was moved by Commissioner Ritzer and seconded by Commissioner Gilles to approve the March 
19, 2012 meeting minutes as presented.  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
A public hearing to consider proposed modifications to the original restoration and management plan 
for the open space contained within the Inspiration development:  Assistant City Administrator/ 
Planner Sara Taylor explained that when the Inspiration development was approved in 2005 as a 
planned unit development, it included 145 acres of restored native prairie open space.  Since that 
time, due to the collapse of the housing market, the development has struggled financially and had 
multiple property owners.  As a result, the open space restoration plan has not been completed and 
maintenance issues with the open space have been identified.  Bayport Mainstreet Holding is the 
current owner of the development and has hired Landform Professional Services to lead development 
of the final open space restoration and develop a maintenance/management plan for the area.  The 
current management team noted that some of the techniques and plants utilized by the original plan 
have not been conducive to the natural conditions on the property, resulting in some unsuccessful 
outcomes.  For that reason, the owner is proposing to modify the original plan in order to establish 
and sustain native plant species.  Planner Taylor reviewed the proposed modifications to the 
restoration and management plan and noted the proposal is consistent with the spirit and intent of the 
original plan.  The Minnesota Land Trust, which holds the conservation easement for the open space 
and oversees management of the land, has indicated their support for the proposed modifications.  
Staff recognized the need to be flexible with the restoration program and recommended approval of 
the proposed modifications, subject to the conditions stated in the staff report.  Notice of the public 
hearing was published in the Stillwater Gazette and mailed to property owners within 350 feet of the 
subject property.  The city received multiple inquiries on the application, but no official public 
comments were received. 
 
Chairperson Levy opened the public hearing and the following were heard: 
 



  2

Nate Dejarnett, 1014 Pioneer Trail, Bayport, stated his general support for the proposed 
modifications and asked for clarification on whether the modifications call for continued use of the 
original native Minnesota prairie seed mix.  Kendra Lindahl, lead consultant on the project, stated the 
proposed plan would modify the original mix, but it would still be a 100% native plant mix.  Mr. 
Dejarnett also recommended that two restored wetland areas, currently surrounded by landscaping, 
should be managed under the realm of the open space maintenance plan instead of the homeowner’s 
lawn maintenance company.  Ms. Lindahl indicated that the areas identified by Mr. Dejarnett are not 
part of the common open space under the conservation easement and are owned and maintained by 
the homeowner’s association (HOA).  She also indicated the property owner would be restoring two 
additional wetland areas not included in the original open space plan (areas 10 and 11 on the exhibit 
map); however maintenance would be the HOA’s responsibility.  Mr. Dejarnett also questioned 
general maintenance responsibility.  Ms. Lindahl explained that when the restoration plan is 
complete, the open space would be conveyed to the city under a Minnesota Land Trust conservation 
easement.  This would trigger establishment of a conservation easement stewardship foundation 
compromised of seven entities, which would be primarily funded by HOA dues.   
 
Commissioner Obler inquired about responsibility for areas outside of the restoration plan, 
specifically an area with leftover construction debris, and Ms. Lindahl indicated she would look into 
this concern.  She stated the developer met with homeowners on July 17, 2012, to update them on the 
proposed plan to complete the open space restoration and will be responding to neighborhood 
concerns identified at that meeting.  She indicated a major issue with the original plan was the failure 
of trees planted in the prairie and savannah areas, due to lack of irrigation and deer grazing.  The 
proposed plan calls for more native prairie grasses and plants that require minimal long-term 
maintenance.  She stressed that no viable native plants would be removed and they plan to get the 
buckthorn under control and will look into the removal of dead or unhealthy trees. 
 
Ron Van Zee, 470 South 5th Street, Bayport, inquired about the plan for area 5, and Ms. Lindahl 
stated the area was identified by the Minnesota Department of Natural Resources (DNR) as a 
previously established, stable plant community and the area would be cared for as part of the ongoing 
maintenance.  Mr. Van Zee asked about the qualifications of the vendors doing the prescribed burns, 
and it was noted all applications for burn permits are reviewed and issued by the Bayport Fire 
Department. 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Obler and seconded by Commissioner Richtman to close the public 
hearing.  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
Commissioner Richtman questioned the wide range of bids to complete the restoration work, with 
Sandstrom Land Management being the low bidder.  Ms. Lindahl stated Sandstrom has done a good 
job with maintenance of the prairie over the past three years and is well qualified to complete the 
restoration work.  Ms. Lindahl said the proposed restoration plan would reduce the ongoing 
maintenance costs for the open space, which are paid by the HOA. 
 
Commissioners Levy and Obler noted concerns about herbicide applications and appropriate 
notification to residents.  Brady Halverson, landscape architect for Landform, stated there are 
generally two herbicide applications per year and mowing will be done twice a year, to follow best 
practices to control thistle and noxious weed growth.  Resident Nate Dejarnett expressed concern that 
the fast growing Canadian goldenrod in area 5 should be controlled or it may overtake the area.  Mr. 
Halverson stated the goal of the restoration is to establish a stable community of plants dominated by 
native species.  The area will be inspected by the Minnesota Land Trust on an annual basis, as well as 



  3

monitored by the Minnesota DNR, the HOA, and the city to ensure the proposed maintenance 
schedules are followed. 
 
Commissioner Obler inquired about plans for the education building once it is conveyed back to the 
city.  Planner Taylor indicated no decision has been made and the city would begin discussions on 
this once the prairie restoration is complete.   
 
It was moved by Commissioner Ritzer and seconded by Commissioner Richtman to recommend to 
the City Council to approve the proposed modifications to the original restoration and management 
plan for the open space contained within the Inspiration development, with the findings of fact listed 
in the staff report and presented at this meeting. Motion carried 5-0. 
 
The recommendation will be presented to the City Council at the October 1, 2012 meeting. 
 
OLD BUSINESS – None 
 
NEW BUSINESS – None 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
Update on term expiration/reappointment:  Planner Taylor indicated that the terms for 
Commissioners Levy and Obler expire on December 31, 2012.  She requested that the commissioners 
notify her by October 15, 2012, of their desire to retain their seat on the Planning Commission. 
 
OPEN FORUM – None 
 
ADJOURN 
It was moved by Commissioner Levy and seconded by Commissioner Gilles to adjourn the meeting 
at 7:10 p.m.  Motion carried 5-0.  


